
 
 
3 Primrose Street 

 Newtown, CT  06470 
 Tel. (203) 270-4282 
 Fax (203) 270-4278 
 www.fairfieldhills.org 

 

Page 1 of 7 
 
 

A recording of this meeting is available at the Land Use Office in the Newtown Municipal Center 

 

  Fairfield Hills Master Plan Review Committee 
MINUTES 

 

The Fairfield Hills Master Plan Review Committee held a Meeting on October 10, 2018  
In the Parks & Rec meeting room, 3 Main Street, Newtown CT 06470 

These minutes are subject to approval at the next meeting.  
 

 

Present:  Deborra Zukowski, Neil Chaudhary, Gary MacRae, Doug Smith, Chandravir Ahuja, Bob Bowen 
 

Absent:  Bryan Roth, Rob Sherwood, Jeffery Jorgensen, Robert Rau, 
 
Public Attendance:  none 
 
Also Present:  Fred Hurley – Public Works Director, Louis Carbone – Water & Sewer Commissioner, Kim 
Chiappetta – clerk. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:07 p.m. 
 
Chair Deborra Zukowski began the meeting by  
 
Public Participation:  
None 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Wednesday, September 12th: 
Neil Chaudhary motioned to approve the minutes from September 12, 2018.  Gary MacRae seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed with all in favor.  Bob Bowen abstained.   
 
Tuesday, September 25th: 
Chand Ahuja motioned to approve the minutes from September 25, 2018.  Bob Bowen seconded the motion. 
Chairman Zukowski asked for comments or discussions. 
 
She then identified the following inaccuracies from the September 25th minutes: 

 Page 2 – Top paragraph – Correct “The district and Master Plan are controlled by……” to “The zone and 
Master Plan are controlled by……” 

 Large paragraph – Correct “Ross added that when former First Selectman Julia Wasserman negotiated 
the sale…….” To “Ross added that when former State Representative Julia Wasserman negotiated the 
sale……” 

 Page 4 – 4th paragraph – Correct “Rob asked if the Town every approved Tech Park……” to “Rob asked if 
the Town ever approved Tech Park……” 

 
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
   



Page 2 of 7 
 

Communications  

Campus abatement and Demo Costs: 

Deb began by informing members that they all should have received (via email) the table for abatement and 
razing of the buildings.  (See attached document “Summary of FH Abatement and Demo Costs – 2017”.) 

The member bios are still not on the Fairfield Hills Master Plan Review Committee page of the Town website.  
Deb will follow‐up with Renee for a status update. 

Emails with Newtown Resident: 

There have been several emails with a Newtown resident named Wayne Addessi.  One comment Deb 
highlighted was “I'm specifically interested in conversing on the totality of the future of FFH and each members 
openness to engage in progress residents may want to see. It’s been far too long of a process.”  In additional 
email conversations, Mr. Addessi provided the following bullet list of questions: 

 Original promises to the community ‐ what were they and are we on course to accomplish and were 
they delivered upon as of yet?  ‐ Deb explained that this will be addressed in conversations with Bob 
Geckle and Lilla Dean. 

 How committed are we to the original vision? – Deb believes the vision he may be speaking of is the 
2005 vision.  

 Does this group see a new vision that can be created or a renewed strategy coming soon? – Deb 
provided Mr. Addessi links to the 2013 Master Plan update. 

 If it is a new strategy what might be included?  
 Is there an ability to think outside the box today, i.e. creating a renewed vision, selling off parcels, 

reaching out to developers and creating partnerships or a shared strategy, generating funds to repay 
our investment? – Part of the fact finding is to get metrics needed to have a reasonable discussion 
regarding this point. 

(See attached document email subject “FFH discussions”.) 

Questions to Finance: 

Deb emailed Bob Tait, Director of Finance, the following: 

1) Current/Active bonds used for appropriations related to the property and its development, including any 
restrictions that may have been placed on the property as part of qualifying for the bond. This info, if possible, 
should include initial amount and date of expiration. Also, do restrictions go away when the bond is paid in full? 
 
2) If possible, amount paid for abating and razing buildings. If you feel the FHA is the better place to go for this 
info, that's fine. 
 
3) Amount spent rehabbing spaces (and size of space, if you have such info). 
 
4) Because we are getting the bulk of the financial cost of the property, it makes sense to try to account for all 
expenditures (for public documentation) so that it is clear that we are being as transparent as possible, including 
grants used to offset some of these costs. These added expenditures should include any monies spent for 
infrastructure, parking, landscaping, etc. including an estimate of town services, if possible. 
 
5) Amount of money coming in, e.g., leases, taxes, fees, etc. 
 



Page 3 of 7 
 

6) Amount provided in current budget for upkeep/management, including monies provided to Fairfield Hills 
Authority, Parks and Rec, Public Works, etc. 
 

Deb informed members that Bob explained Christal Preszler may have some of the information, and that time is 
needed to provide the answers.  (See attached email with subject line “Request for FFH Master Plan Review 
Committee”.) 

 

Questions to Tax: 

Deb spoke with Penny Mudgett, Tax Assessor, regarding assessments and obtaining taxes for Town owned 
properties.  Also, how is personal property tax taken into consideration?  Deb would like to create a model that 
could be used to better understand the various options that could be proposed.  Fred Hurley, Director of Public 
Works, interjected that property could not be sold according to the transfer act with the State, which is the legal 
authorization for the transfer of the property to the Town mandating the Town retains ownership of the 
property.  Deb added that in order to sell, our State representative would have to convince the State Legislature 
to obsolete that restriction.  Fred further added that sign‐off would be required from the 7 parties that agreed 
to actual document of transfer.  Deb expressed that this is the type of information needed. 

Deb asked if any members had communications they would like to move forward.  Hearing none, she moved 
forward to New Business. 

 

New Business 

Fairfield Hills campus infrastructure (See attached maps): 

Deb introduced Fred Hurley, Director of Public Works and Louis Carbone – Water & Sewer Commissioner. 

She began by informing them that the Committee is interested in the limitations and possibilities and what they 
mean in terms of options for use of the property. 

Fred first showed members the original utility grid mapping of the campus which included power, water, and 
sewer.  There was a main power plant with a distribution system throughout.  There was also steam heat, and 
cold and hot running water.  All of this is gone in terms of the power.  Pedestrian and utility tunnels have been 
cut and disconnected.  The entire electrical grid is now all standard from Eversource.  Power for campus is a 
radial feed which works conceptually like old Christmas lights where if one light goes out they all go out.  When 
it is proposed that various buildings go on line, it is necessary to first shutdown everyone else.  Public Works 
changed the approach so that there are trying to get it where the main feed comes off of Wasserman Way goes 
through the campus, and then exits back onto the circuit onto Mile Hill South.   

Water, Sewer and storm drains have stayed essentially the same with a lot of improvements.  Fred referred to 
map and showed members the buildings that are gone, and added that is almost time to have a surveyor 
generate a new map.  Currently, the line terminates near the duplexes.  The plan is to finish through to Mile Hill 
South creating a full energized circuit.  This month and next month, Eversource is going to extend the circuit so 
that an electrical utility loop will exist on the campus.  Gary asked if Brewery at Stratford Hall would be part of 
loop.  Fred said yes.  Deb asked if everything is up to date and gave an example of antique wiring not being able 
to handle the power in another part of town.  She asked if Stratford Hall and the duplexes wiring have been 
updated.  Fred explained that only the Parent Connection has been updated and that the Town will need to get 
power to Stratford Hall.  The Brewery owners will handle indoor electrical.   

 



Page 4 of 7 
 

Deb asked if the electricity will determine where buildings can be placed.  Fred explained that there is some 
flexibility in where loops can be added to the loop.  He further added that conduit is inexpensive, and depending 
upon usage of building determines how much utility co will charge.  Neil asked who usually pays these costs.  
Fred explained that the loop is the responsibility of the Town and that the additional costs depends upon how 
the lease is written.  He added that campus leases are not standard and vary depending upon the situation.   

The conversation moved onto water.  Fred informed members that the water system contains well 7 and well 8 
located on the Fish and Game property.  In the transfer, the Town must pay the State for the water used.  Well 7 
provides sufficient water to campus.  Public Works will soon be bringing Well 8 back on line.  The wells go to the 
water pump station and then go to bunkers that provide pressure, roughly 50 psi, which is acceptable for 
general flow but not adequate for fire protection.  It has been found that there is a need to put booster pumps 
on for added pressure to the buildings.  The new Community Center also requires a booster pump for showers 
and bathrooms.  Filters have also been added to buildings although they are not required as the water quality is 
already outstanding.  A recent newspaper article linked the Town’s water with radon, but this was untrue.  The 
bunkers, Well 7 and the pump house have all been overhauled due to a lightning strike that required electrical 
lines be replaced and modernized.  Deb summarized that Well 7 produces enough water to service the campus, 
and Deb added that this includes Nunnawauk and the prison.  Fred added that the prison is the primary 
customer at about 80% of usage.  Fred clarified that Well 8 provides a higher capacity than Well 7, and that only 
one can be operational at a time so that there is no negative impact to the aquifer.  Lou explained that Well 8 is 
for a reserve.  Fred said that once everything is up and running they will alternate between wells 7 and 8.  There 
is an additional well 3 that has limited capacity due to a silting issue.  The original water line went up to Queen 
Street to service doctors’ houses, but the line was cut‐off.  When Aquarion has completed bringing additional 
capacity to Town they want to set‐up an interconnection between Fairfield Hills and the main Town system.  
This is also a goal of the Department of Health to the Town.  The advantage is that should the Fairfield Hills 
system go down the Town can populate pressure for the entire water system through Aquarion.  Deb asked of 
the capacity that can be pumped per peak hour, what percentage is still available?  In a year, if there is a 
connection to Aquarian, the answer is whatever Aquarion can add to boost the actual gallons.  Fred said that 
Aquarion will not actually boost the system and that there is an enormous capacity and no near the demand.  He 
explained that when the hospital was active there were 6,000 people here with enormous water uses.  The point 
of Aquarion hooking into the Town’s water supply, would be beneficial if there was ever a loss of inflow into the 
Town’s supply, the valves to the Aquarion system can be turned on and it will pressurize and repopulate the 
entire system.  Per Deb’s request, Fred will be providing an email regarding the capacity of water on the campus.  
Deb explained that this information will be considered when determining development. 

Fred also informed members that there is natural gas available on the campus, and that the Municipal Center is 
currently serviced by natural gas and the Community Center will be also.  The group then discussed natural gas 
supply issues in the State.     

The conversation returned to the topic of water capacity.  Neil asked if any there were any concerns with pools 
or skating rink.  Fred said no, that both are minor uses in comparison of capacity of the system.  Gary asked if 
there were any concern with the structure of the pipes breaking down.  Fred said the pipes are cast iron with 
brass fittings, so there are no concerns.  He explained that there are no lead pipes anywhere in the system.  Deb 
added that these original pipes are 30 feet down, and asked if cast iron deteriorate.  Fred answered the pipes 
will last 200 – 300 years.  The concerns are with the sewer and drainage.  The sewers are composed of clay pipes 
and brick structures.  Fred referred to old map to explain that when the campus was developed the land was 
leveled by adding soil which resulted in the utility pipes being installed 16 feet deep.  Fred said that grant 
applications have been submitted through different sources to get the sewer lines raised up.  A standard 
estimated cost used by utility companies for installation would be $200 / linear foot. He added that there may 
be additional restoration costs associated with digging and repairing the roads.   



Page 5 of 7 
 

Neil asked if the approach taken in Hawleyville was a cheaper solution.  Fred and Lou said yes.  Hawleyville was 
difficult because Public Works was aware that two large developments were coming in, but did not have any 
details.  In order to address various scenarios, dual lines of different sizes were installed.  This ultimately kept 
the cost down because it was not necessary to dig, repair and replace at the time a structure was being built.  
Neil asked if the campus lends itself to a gravity driven system.  Fred and Lou said the campus is a gravity run 
system and that this keeps the cost down as no pumping station is required.  There may be a need to clean pipes 
occasionally, but this is a smaller maintenance issue.   

Fred informed members that the treatment plant is permitted at a total of the 932,000 gallons; 332,000 gallons 
is allocated to the Town and the remaining 500,000 gallons belongs to the State.  In 2004, when the campus was 
transferred to the Town, there was 100,000 gallons belonging to the State that was transferred to the Town with 
the stipulation that it can only be used at Fairfield Hills.  Deb asked for the actual use on the Fairfield Hills 
campus.  Fred said that out of the 100,000 there is still 80% available for the campus.  The treatment plant 
designed to handle a massive inflow of 3 million to 5 million gallons of water because of the open gravity system 
that means there is no control of the flow.  The system has the capacity to absorb large amount of storm water.  
It is not the permitted capacity for treatment of the water.  Lou added that this is a retention.  This water is held 
until the biologic levels are acceptable to move through the plant.  Fred said that there is more of an 
infrastructure issue in regards to the condition of pipes.  The outlets for the Bridgeport Hall (the Municipal 
Center) and NYA have raised outlets the drop into a man hole.  Deb asked if eventually there will be no storm 
water going into the sewage, and Fred confirmed this is correct 

Bob asked for clarification that the cast iron coming in, clay going out and that the clay does not have a long 
lifespan.  Fred said yes, the clay tiles are susceptible to breakage.  Influx into sewer mains is also old loose tiles 
where infiltration occurs.   

Deb then asked about storm water.  Fred explained that the buildings have rehabbed storm water systems that 
have very large outlet pipes through middle of campus.  Receptor pipes are not a problem.  There is a need to 
upgrade the feeder pipes.  Since there has not been allot of investment in paving, this would be a good time to 
tie in.  Have not invested a lot in paving, so not bad time to tie in.  When do road project, upgrade drainage.  
Trout need cold water so ingesting hot water is detrimental to the fish.  Water from Nunnawauk piped 
underground to river which is cold.  If put conduits in add extra conduits as a money saving effort.  Neil asked if 
enough fiber to run communications for regional stuff.   

Deb expressed concerns with water in and around buildings on the campus.  Fred explained that the standing 
water on the campus is more due to surface water which results from substandard fill containing high levels of 
clay that was used when the campus was developed.   

Doug asked if the pipes were replaced with PVC, what is the life span.  Fred said he’s heard 200 years and has 
seen listed 400 years.  Areas of Town where failures have occurred, the worn out metal pipes have been 
replaced with PVC.   

Fred informed members that Rob Sibley, Deputy Director of Planning, can provide more information on storm 
water.   

Meeting Attendance and Participation Alternatives: 

Bryan has a professional exam and has been unable to attend meeting, but feels badly.  Asked if should step 
down.  Deb asked group when discuss meeting attendance and participation alternative.  Doug added that at 
times he has a shift that cannot be moved and has found audio phenomenally helpful.  Chand agreed that audio 
was very helpful.  Deb asked if recording gives enough information to give considered judgment.  Bob Bowen 
agreed it was very helpful with his work travel schedule, and added ability to email questions.  If have meeting 
where voting is required, then work schedules as best as can to attend. 



Page 6 of 7 
 

Deb said that in February the Committee will hold a  public meeting, and then afterward can organize sub‐
committees.    Chand requested as a courtesy for members to notify Chair if will be absent.   

Deb said for information meetings, 5 is acceptable attendance as enough are there to ask questions.   

 

Old Business 

Public Communication Channels (Social Media, Liaisons, etc.): 

Neil informed Committee members that he contacted the State FOI Commission asking about the pitfalls around 
social media.   It was explained to him that if while on social media a committee members adds a post and other 
committee members comment it is considered a meeting.  When social media is set‐up, it must be done so that 
others cannot make comments.  One option would be to assign someone as the leader who would solely be 
responsible for posting, or to not post until the item has already been discussed in a meeting.  Neil added that 
erroneous information should be addressed, but opinions will be left.  Chand expressed he felt there is a need to 
establish guidelines and/or standard answers.  Deb requested that Neil document the social media guidelines.   

Next, Deb said that members have asked for liaisons, and recommendations thus far are as follows: 

 Gary McCray:  Commission on Aging, Friends Of Newtown Seniors, Senior Center 

 Deb Zukowski:  Cultural Arts 

 Bob Rau:  Economic Development Commission  

 Bryan Roth:  Chamber of Commerce of Newtown 

 

Remaining are: 

 Fairfield Hills Authority 

 Parks & Rec 

 Conservation Commission 

Chand asked what would be required of the liaison.  Deb answered that the liaison must report back to the 
Committee concerns and suggestion regarding the campus.  Neil added that liaisons must ensure if they are 
giving feedback of their own they must explain that it is not the opinion of the Committee. 

Deb requested a motion to assign Gary MacRae to senior related commissions. 

Doug entertained.  Chand seconded.  Motion passed with all in favor. 

Deb request a motion to assign her to the Cultural Arts Commission.   

Chand entertained.  Bob seconded.  Motion passed with all in favor. 

Deb requested a motion to assign Bryan Roth to the Chamber.   

Neil motioned for Bryan Roth to be assigned as liaison to the Chamber with the right to decline.  Doug second.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 

Chand motioned to have Bob Rau assigned as liaison to the EDC.  Bob second.  Motion passed with all in favor.   

Deb requested a motion to have Doug and Bob as co‐liaisons who will alternately attend Parks & Rec meetings.  
Neil motion.  Gary seconded.  Motion passed with all in favor. 



Page 7 of 7 
 

Deb asked that all communications be filtered through her.   

 

Schedule/Calendar: 

Deb reminded members that she has done a re‐write of the research agenda.  She reviewed the schedule 
through November 20th and identified changes.  Chand noted that November 20th is the Tuesday prior to 
Thanksgiving and that attendance may be lacking due to the holiday.   

Deb highlighted to Committee members that the public hearing is currently on the agenda for February 12th.   

 
Public Participation 
No public participation. 
 
 
Discussion of Future Agenda Items 

No discussion. 
 
With no further business, Bob made a motion to adjourn.  Doug seconded and the meeting was adjourned at 
9:01_p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Kimberly Chiappetta, Clerk.  















10/18/2018 Town of Newtown Mail - Fwd: Request for the FFH Master Plan Review Committee

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=c8098d4db7&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1613869970634205771&simpl=msg-f%3A16138699706… 1/2

Kimberly Chiappetta <kimberly.chiappetta@newtown-ct.gov>

Fwd: Request for the FFH Master Plan Review Committee 
1 message

Deborra Zukowski <debz.newtown.ct@gmail.com> Tue, Oct 9, 2018 at 1:32 PM
To: christal.preszler@newtown-ct.gov
Cc: Kimberly Chiappetta <kimberly.chiappetta@newtown-ct.gov>

Would you be able to work with Bob, re: who has access to the needed info?
 
Thanks,
Deb Z
Kim: CC'ing you for "Communications" 
 
---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Robert Tait <robert.tait@newtown-ct.gov> 
Date: Mon, Oct 8, 2018 at 11:01 AM 
Subject: Re: Request for the FFH Master Plan Review Committee 
To: <debz.newtown.ct@gmail.com> 
Cc: Dan Rosenthal <dan.rosenthal@newtown-ct.gov> 
 
 
Yes, that will take quite a while.  Christal will have some of the information.
 
bob
 
On Sun, Oct 7, 2018 at 5:46 PM Deborra Zukowski <debz.newtown.ct@gmail.com> wrote: 

Hey there,
...
 
As part of our fact-gathering, it would be good to get some up-to-date financials associated with the property including:
1) Current/Active bonds used for appropriations related to the property and its development, including any restrictions
that may have been placed on the property as part of qualifying for the bond. This info, if possible, should include initial
amount and date of expiration. Also, do restrictions go away when the bond is paid in full?
 
2) If possible, amount paid for abating and razing buildings. If you feel the FHA is the better place to go for this info,
that's fine.
 
3) Amount spent rehabbing spaces (and size of space, if you have such info).
 
4) Because we are getting the bulk of the financial cost of the property, it makes sense to try to account for all
expenditures (for public documentation) so that it is clear that we are being as transparent as possible, including grants
used to offset some of these costs. These added expenditures should include any monies spent for infrastructure,
parking, landscaping, etc. including an estimate of town services, if possible.
 
5) Amount of money coming in, e.g., leases, taxes, fees, etc.
 
6) Amount provided in current budget for upkeep/management, including monies provided to Fairfield Hills Authority,
Parks and Rec, Public Works, etc.
 
I know I'm asking for a lot, so please don't feel like you have to have to respond this week.
 
Dan, I am requesting this info because I feel that the review time is a good time to get a snapshot of all that has
happened so that the public understands everything that has occurred and how much they've paid. Any documentation
will be passed by your office prior to posting, for comments/corrections. If you disagree with this POV, that's OK. Please
connect with Bob to ensure that he provides only what you are comfortable with.
 
Debbie
...
 

mailto:robert.tait@newtown-ct.gov
mailto:debz.newtown.ct@gmail.com
mailto:dan.rosenthal@newtown-ct.gov
mailto:debz.newtown.ct@gmail.com


 



 



 




